SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 1, 2010
9:06 a.m

9:06: 46 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stedman called the Senate Finance Commttee
nmeeting to order at 9:06 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair
Senat or Bert Stedman, Co-Chair
Senator Johnny Ellis

Senat or Denni s Egan

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Joe Thomas

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Charlie Huggins, Vice-Chair

ALSO PRESENT

Senator Joe Paskvan; Pat Galvin, Conm ssioner, Departnent
of Revenue; Jerry Burnett, Deputy Comm ssioner, D vision of
Treasury, Depart ment of Revenue; Gary Bader, Chi ef
| nvest nent Oficer, Treasury Division, Depar t ment of
Revenue.

SUMVARY

AOverview by Departnent of Revenue of state savings
accounts and budget reserves.

9:10: 02 AM

PAT GALVI N, COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, i ntroduced
his coll eagues. He explained that M. Burnett would provide
the commttee with an overview of the departnent's various
savi ngs accounts, with hinself and M. Bader available to
answer questions.

JERRY BURNETT, DEPUTY COW SSIONER, DI VISION OF TREASURY,
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE provided a PowerPoint presentation

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 1 02/01/10 9:06 A M



"An Update on the State's Savings Accounts" and discussed
Slide 3: "General fund and other non-segregated funds." He
stated that as of Decenber 31, 2010, the account was worth

$6 billion. He explained that the general fund was where
tax noney is held until it is used to nake paynents. He
poi nted out that approximately $1 billion was in a type one

Menor andum of Understanding (M) account. The type one
account includes various funds. Sone are available to spend
and others are not. The funds retain their earnings at the
end of the year. Another $2 billion of the $6 billion was
in a type two MU account, which includes various accounts
where the wearnings remain in the general fund. The
unrestricted general fund begins each year at zero, so the
bal ance of $3 billion was from the current year; the noney
was appropriated in previous years but had yet to be spent.

9:14: 40 AM

Co-Chair Stedman asked for explanation of the reverse
sweep. M. Burnett replied that since 1993, there have been
borrowi ngs from the Constitutional Budget Reserve (CBR) to
bal ance the budget. Over time, approximately $5 billion
was borrowed. At the end of each fiscal year, all unused
nmoney that is not appropriated from the general fund is
noved into the CBR by operation of the constitution. Each
year in either the operating or capital budget, there is a
provi si on t hat appropri ates t he noney t hat was
automatically paid from the general fund into the CBR back
into subfunds of the general fund. Following a |egislative
appropriation to repay working capital funds the previous
year, the wunrestricted general fund would have a zero
bal ance, but the fund's bal ance was restored with a debt to
t he CBR of about $401 million.

9:17:29 AM

Co-Chair Stedman agreed there nmust be a sweep to zero and
then a reversal of the sweep to neet the technica
requi renents to operate the state; the structures wll
change with the eventual payoff of the CBR He requested
definitions of the terns illustrated in the pie chart on
Slide 3.

9:19:30 AM

GARY BADER, CHI EF | NVESTMENT OFFI CER, TREASURY DI VI SION,
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, explained that the depicted short-

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 02/01/10 9:06 A M



term fixed income is depicted cash of thirteen nonths or
less, and the internediate termis depicted as one to three
years.

Co-Chair Stedman clarified that the term "noney market
account” would be a better way to describe the accounts for
t he public.

M. Burnett noted the market value over the past three
years, specifically remarking on the good tax collection in
2008. The year-to-date (YTD) earnings in the "Returns"
section refers to the cal endar year of 2009, and the fiscal
year-to-date (FYTD) earnings are fromJuly 1 to Decenber 31
of 2009. He thought the funds had done well relative to
bench marks and expectati ons.

Co- Chair Stedman noticed the substantial spread between the
benchmarks of the general fund, and requested the nunbers
be expl ored further.

9:22: 04 AM

Co- Chair Hof fman wondered how the forecast of 3.6 percent
was determ ned, because the FYTD was only 1.6 percent. M.
Burnett responded that the FYTD was only six nonths, but
when doubled it was 3.2 percent, a little below the
forecast of 3.6 percent.

9:23: 04 AM

Co-Chair Stedman noted that Alaska was reclassifying $700
mllion in other state funds to general funds, and queried
the inpact on managing the investnment. M. Burnett stated
that Alaska wll continue to invest funds in the sane
manner .

M. Burnett continued with Slide 4: "Constitutional Budget
Reserve Fund." He nentioned that the subaccount is actually
| arger than the main account. He explained that the main
account refers to available noney invested in internediate
term short term and broad market securities with noderate
risk. Most of the growh from 2007 to 2009 occurred because
of appropriations and settlenments in the range of $5.6
mllion and sone fromthe sweep of the last fiscal year.

Co-Chair Stedman requested definitions of each of the
division's titles in the pie chart, specifically "Broad

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 02/01/10 9:06 A M



Market." M. Bader explained that the broad narket refers
to what was previously known as the Lehnman Aggregate fixed
i ncone benchmark, and is now known as the Barclays
Aggregate. The conposition of the aggregate is generally
nortgages, treasury bills, corporate bonds, and other

asset - backed securities. The corporate bond' s conposition
changes as the market changes, but the aggregate is the
benchmark. The internediate termrefers to a Merrill Lynch

1-3 Governnent |Index and the short-term fixed incone refers
to noney market or cash.

Co-Chair Stedman asked whether the broad market was
actively managed or indexed. M. Bader responded that it
was actively managed.

9:26:35 AM

M. Burnett furthered that about $16 billion of fixed
inconme is actively managed by the Treasury Division.

Co-Chair Stednman asked what was specifically actively
managed and indexed. He realized the presentation was
generic and would include nore detail |ater, but renmarked
that the worst market in years was not reflected in the
present ati on.

Senator Thomas wondered whether the vyield was only
interest. M. Bader explained that the returns represented
interest earnings plus losses or gains from market
novenent .

Senator Thomas queried the benchmarks. M. Bader answered
that the benchmarks for the broad market were the Barclays
Aggregate, the internediate term was the Merrill Lynch 1-3
Government Index, and the cash was the 90-day Treasury
Bill.

9:28:34 AM

M. Burnett pointed out that the [2009] YTD actual was 4.23
percent, the FYTD actual was 2.46 percent, the three-year
actual was 5.56 percent, and the five-year actual was 4.81
percent. An exception was for the three-year actual, which
did not outperform the benchmarks. Based on capital
assunptions and benchmarks, the forecast of 4.18 percent
was hi gher than the FYTD of 2.46 percent.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 02/01/10 9:06 A M



Co- Chair Stednan asked whether M. Burnett had the one year
act ual with him M. Bur net t offered to get t he
i nformation.

M. Burnett continued that the other part of the CBR was
treated as an investnent fund, and was created by the
legislature in 1998. At that tinme, the legislature was
considering borrow ng noney, and wanted to be sure the
investnments were earning a higher rate than what was being
borrowed. The decision canme out of the Senate Finance
Conmittee. The subaccount |ost 25 percent in the first year
and had $400 mllion, but it did rebound a bit. The fixed
incone was the sanme as the broad market in the min
account. It has international equities, which is a Europe
Far East, and Asia (EFA) index fund.

M. Bader continued that the international equities are EFA
index, but are also 80 percent active. The EFA is
consi dered both indexed and actively managed.

9:31: 21 AM

Co-Chair Stednan observed that the EFA was basically a
80/20 split. M. Bader agreed.

M. Bader pointed out that the Donestic Equity is based on
the Russell 3000 Index. The Russell 3000 Index is an index
of approxinmately 3000 donestic conpanies with the highest
mar ket val ue. Russell |ooks at the conpanies and creates an
i ndex based on them

M. Burnett continued that the Russell 3000 Index is a mnuch
broader index than the Dow Jones Industrial Average (DJI)
or Standard & Poor's 500 (SP 500). He remarked that the
Russell 3000 index mrrors the domestic econonmy nore
closely than the DJI or SP 500.

Co-Chair Stedman pointed out that the DJI represents
i ndustrial stocks and the SP 500 represents the 500 |argest
stocks, so the Russell 3000 Index is nerely broadening out
to the 3000 | argest stocks.

Co- Chair Hof fman asked whether the forecast included the
fiscal year. M. Burnett replied that it was the forecast
for the asset allocation, and is based annually on the
capi tal market.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 02/01/10 9:06 A M



Co- Chair Hof f man wondered whether the general fund forecast
was for the fiscal year or the calendar year. M. Burnett
specified that it was for the fiscal year.

Co-Chair Hoffman revisited the general fund (Slide 3) and
poi nted out that the FYTD was 1.6 percent, but the forecast
was 3.6 percent. The forecast results from doubling the
FYTD and factoring in a 0.4 percent growh. He then queried
a discrepancy in the CBR subfund returns, specifically the
FYTD of 16.61 percent with a forecast of only 7.87 percent.

9:34: 08 AM

M. Bader expl ai ned that the high-risk funds were
predom nantly stocks, which have far greater returns, but
al so suffer fromgreater volatility.

Co- Chair Hof fman wondered whether the stock markets would
| ose funds, because the forecast was so much |ower than
that FYTD. M. Burnett explained that the forecast was as
expected at the beginning of the fiscal year, so the FYTD
has done better than what was forecast.

Co-Chair Stedman added that the broad nmarket had a
substanti al rebound above what was expected.

Co- Chair Hof fman assuned that the forecast was for the next
six nonths, and noted that the forecast should have been
updated. M. Burnett explained that his presentation would
|ater highlight forecast incones for the Revenue Sources
Book, which would update the actuals using the 7.87 percent
earnings rate as the forecast.

Co-Chair Hoffman clarified that the forecast was obsol ete.
M . Burnett conceded.

Co-Chair Stednan explained that historical data and
assunptions are used when projecting a return in a volatile
equity market. There is variance with the forecast, so it
is difficult to forecast the equity nmarket in advance. He
suggest ed expl ori ng how benchmarks are creat ed.

9:38: 55 AM

M. Bader stated that projected earnings assunptions for
each of the asset classes were presented to the Treasury
Division and the Al aska Retirenent Managenent Board (ARM).

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 02/01/10 9:06 A M



Results were put into an optimzer that |ooked at
conbi nations of risk and return, which could be used as a
central tendency forecast.

9:40: 25 AM

Co-Chair Stednman requested a ten-year return actual

because the last ten years were historically low for
rolling ten-year averages. He suggested a focus on range of
outputs and dollars based on allocations, rather than the
broad distribution of the 7.87 percent forecast of the
hi gh-risk investnents. He anticipated a presentation of all
the major accounts at once, including the $35 billion
permanent fund, the $15 billion retirenment accounts, and
the savings accounts. He clarified that he is not
interested in going into the retirement accounts, but he
stressed the inportance of wunderstanding how all of the
accounts in the state are nmnaged. He projected that the

permanent fund will need sone serious attention after a few
decades, because the oil and gas basins will mature and dry
out .

Co-Chair Stednman queried the definition of "noderately |ong
i nvestment horizon." The year before, the account had been
referred to as "noderately long savings account." M.
Burnett reported that both referred to the same thing

9:44: 06 AM

Co-Chair Stedman thought an evolution may occur, because
there had been sone internal discussion anbng committee
menbers as to whether the state should hedge wth oi
prices. There had also been discussion that the |arge cash
reserves were the hedging nechanism He suggested that the
taxes are structured to capture spikes, so the revenue was
held to protect against inplosions in price. He pointed out
that there were peripheral influences, and the finance
conmittee needed to reassure the admnistration of the
commttee's direction.

Senator (O son addressed the subfund of the CBR and
requested explanation of the difference between the market
values from 2007 and 2008, because it junped over 650
percent in just one year. M. Burnett explained that the
appropriation of $2.3 billion for the CBR was put into the
subfund and transferred to the main account. In FY 08 and
FY 09, the legislature appropriated approximately $5

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 02/01/10 9:06 A M



billion to the CBR The difference was an addition of $4.1
mllion and i nvest ment | osses.

Co-Chair Stednman recommended the committee have a policy
di scussion regarding how the noney should be spent. He
stated that the conmttee nmay want to restructure the
al | ocati on.

Senator O son wondered whether Co-Chair Stedman wanted a
nor e conservati ve approach

9:48: 03 AM

Co-Chair Stedman explained that he would like a discussion
anong committee nenbers, but he anticipated that the group
would decide on a nore conservative structure for the
savi ngs account.

M. Bur net t continued wth Slide 5: " Power Cost
Equal i zation Fund." The Power Cost Equalization Fund (PCE)
is an endowrent fund for paying power cost equalization.
The fund has a 7 percent annual payout, 20 percent
international equity, 37 percent fixed inconme, and 43
percent donestic equity. The fixed incone refers to the
broad market and the donmestic equity refers to the Russel
3000 I ndex.

Co-Chair Stedman surmsed that the allocation was 63
percent equity and 37 percent incone and was sinmlar to the
subaccount of the CBR M. Burnett agreed.

Co-Chair Stedman asked how far behind the CBR was from the
initial investnment. M. Burnett reported that it was
currently behind by about $300 mllion.

Co-Chair Stedman queried the nunbers at the beginning of
January, in order to have nunbers align. M. Burnett
explained that the CBR was about $200 nillion behind,
stating that it was approximately the same as June 2008.

Co- Chai r Stedman  asked whet her the allocation was
intentional. M. Burnett explained that the allocation was
set to achieve the return necessary to pay out 7 percent
per year. On an efficient frontier wth specific assets
there will be simlar asset allocations.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 02/01/10 9:06 A M



Co-Chair Stedman queried the tine horizon of the PCE M.
Burnett stated that the horizon was long termwith no end
to the PCE endowrent fund, likening it to the pernmanent
fund.

9:51:41 AM

Co- Chair Hof fman pointed out that the CBR has two cl asses:
nmoderate and high risk. He wondered where the direction
cane to invest all the PCE on high risk. M. Burnett noted
the statute that sets up the endowrent fund requires a 7
percent annual payout, so it is invested assuming a 7
percent return.

Co-Chair Hoffrman requested they focus on a nore noderate
i nvestnment schene. M. Burnett noted that 37 percent of the
PCE is invested in fixed-inconme securities and broad index.

Co-Chair Hoffrman surm sed that a high-risk investnent wll
only bring in 7 percent. M. Burnett explained that based
on the asset mx and the capital assunptions, the centra
tendency over tine would be to achieve the forecast
earni ngs of about 7 percent. Furthernore, the higher the
rate of return that one tries to achieve, the higher
probability of a loss in any given peri od.

Co- Chair Hoffman requested the ten-year actual.

Co- Chai r St edman consi dered t he 7 per cent return
unsust ai nabl e, because common payouts are closer to 4
percent. He worried that the ten-year actual would be |ess
than 7 percent, because the five-year actual was only 3.55
per cent. He reiterated the inportance of a policy
di scussi on about the potenti al erosion of the PCE
pur chasi ng power and actual val ue.

9: 55: 58 AM

Co-Chair Stedman discussed the portfolio as a long-term
time horizon in perpetuity, which is different from the
five-year time horizon of +the CBR He suggested the
commttee |look at the difference |later.

M. Burnett pointed out that the YID return was 21.64

percent, the FYTD return was 15.77 percent, the five-year
actual was 3.71 percent, and the three-year actual was

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 02/01/10 9:06 A M



zero. Most of the noney went into the account about three
years prior.

Co-Chair Stedman reiterated that there was an equity
i nfusi on, and suggested it be neasured by weighing the cash
flow based on tine. M. Burnett indicated that the timng
was not the best.

Co-Chair Stedman nentioned the equity infusion to the
courts accounts. He understood good and bad ti m ng.

9:58:12 AM

M. Burnett addressed Slide 6: "Public School Trust Fund."
The incone account is 100 percent fixed incone, because
that was where the noney was spent from on an annual basis.
The principle account is noderate risk, wth 43 percent
domestic equity, and 57 percent fixed incone. He explained
that the fund |ost noney, but has regained it. The YTD
returns were 17.64 percent, the FYTD were 12.28 percent

the three-year actuals were 1.38 percent, and the five-year
actuals were 3.59 percent, with a forecast of 6.95 percent.

Co-Chair Stednman requested an inflation colum be included
in a revised chart. He stressed the inportance of observing
the benchmarks, purchasing power, and performance. M.
Burnett agreed and explained that the incone fund is a
cash-only account.

Co-Chair Stedman inquired about the pay out for the incone
account. M. Bader responded that the interest earnings and
dividend earnings go into the inconme account, which is
avai |l abl e for appropriation by the |egislature.

Co-Chair Stedman asked how the |osses are allocated. M.
Bader replied that the <capital gains and |osses are
retained in the principle fund.

10: 01: 12 AM

M. Burnett discussed Slide 7: "PERS & TRS [Public
Enpl oyees’ Reti renent System and Teachers Retirenent
Systeny."

M. Bader explained that the "Fixed Inconme" is primrily
broad i nconme narket debt. "Donmestic Equity" includes active

and passive managers, which includes |arge capital and

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 02/01/10 9:06 A M



small capital. The "International/d obal Equity" has two

conponents: one is a nerging market, which includes
countries that are beginning to nerge into the globa
econony, including China; and the others are devel oped
international markets wth large capital. The m ssing
conponent in the international/global equity is an
international market with small capital. "Real Assets”

refers to noney that is intended to act as a hedge agai nst
inflation. These include -energy, real estate, tinber,
farm and, and treasury inflation protected securities.
"Alternatives/Infrastructure" refers to hedge funds and
private-equity investnments in startup conpani es.

M. Burnett addressed market values, and noted that both
funds are conplex from a cash-flow basis. There is noney
that conmes in on a nmonthly basis from enployers, there is
noney that goes out nonthly to retirees, and there are
special appropriations by the legislature into the funds.
He enphasized the constant cash flow in the accounts, and
also losses and gains in investnents. The FYTD was 12.3
percent, the three-year actual was negative 1.87 percent,
and the five-year actual was 3.35 percent. The forecast of
8.25 was an assuned rate, because the investnments are
structured to nmeet the rate. The Teacher Retirement System
is alnost the same investnment rate as PERS, but there is a
sl i ght vari ance in returns because of cash-fl ow
di fferences.

10: 07: 00 AM

Co-Chair Stedman recalled the 8.25 return that was forecast
in the previous year. Based on the last three years, he
felt that a forecast of 8.25 percent was too high. He asked
for advice on how to obtain 8.25 percent, since it had not
been achieved in the past three years.

M. Burnett stated that the sane question was asked in the
last two neetings of the ARM. There was an asset-
liability study done and a presentation by the actuary of
the state. The presentation showed an expected return base
of around 8.4 percent. He conceded that the 8.25 percent
was inconclusive, but the board was focused on determ ning
the correct assunptions.

Co-Chair Stednman remarked that lowering the forecast of
8.25 percent would have repercussions on the targets. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 02/01/10 9:06 A M



would be willing to have a discussion if the division
wanted to raise the forecast to 8.4 percent.

10: 10: 29 AM

M. Burnett clarified that the 8.4 percent was not a
recommendati on. The board felt that a forecast of closer to
8 percent was nore reasonable. He specified that he did not
believe that the presented forecast of 8.25 was too | ow.

Co- Chair Hoffman questioned why a forecast under noderate
risk was higher than a forecast under high risk. M.
Burnett could not conclude definitively the reason for the
difference, but remarked that the assets in the PERS and
TRS were not liquid as the PCE

Co- Chair Hoffman suggested the PCE be invested in a simlar
fashion as PERS and TRS.

Co-Chair Stedman furthered that the definitions should
remai n consistent. He thought that the investnents outside
of stocks and bonds could expect to have an inpact on the
eval uation. He suggested an examnation of the |liquid
assets be conducted, in order to determne their val ue.

M. Burnett agreed to provide an explanation about the PERS
and TRS funds, and noted that the funds had noved away from
| everaged investnents and real estate over the | ast year.

10: 14: 47 AM

M. Bader explained that 80 percent of the real-estate
investnments were known as core real-estate, neaning they
are institutional-grade properties wth no |everage.
Sections of 20 percent of the investnment portfolio for PERS
and TRS were collective funds and had significant |everage.

Co-Chair Stedman wanted to have an informal discussion
about the permanent fund. One concern was whether to
refinance, because the |enders m ght be unable to
refinance. He stressed the inportance of evaluating the
accuracy of the estimates on the market value, because of
the possibility of Iliquidation. He noted there was |ess
ri sk paying cash than |everaging. M. Bader agreed that was
true in the collective funds, but remarked that the assets
were held in a separate account and were close to market
val ue.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 12 02/01/10 9:06 A M



Co-Chair Stednman noted that the commttee would explore the
subj ect further during the permanent fund presentation.

10: 18: 23 AM

M. Burnett discussed Slide 8: "Al aska Permanent Fund
Corporation Board" (APFC). He remarked that nost of the
descriptions fall under a risk-based analysis, so he would
not address the definitions. He pointed to the value in
2007 of $38 billion, noting a drop in 2008 of $28 billion

and then back up to $34 billion in 2009. The FYTD was 14.3
percent, the three-year actual was negative 1.25 percent,
and the five-year actual was 3.48 percent. The forecast
return was 8.28 percent, which was just slightly better
than the PERS and TRS forecast. He restated that the APFC
would be giving a presentation to the commttee, so he
deened it unnecessary to explore the fund.

Co-Chair Stedman comented that the APFC was invested
differently fromthe retirenent accounts. PERS and TRS have
a shorter tinme horizon than the APFC, and have a payout
that nmust be met for retirees. He noted that the APFC did
not have a requirenent, and was based nore on narket fl ow
He stressed the inportance of profiling the risk exposure
for both accounts.

10: 21: 10 AM

M. Burnett discussed Slide 10: "FY 2010 Investnent Revenue
Forecast."” He nentioned that the forecast in the Revenue
Sources Book was based on a conbination of actuals and
forecasts. He noted the actual unrestricted earnings in FY
09 were $82.8 nmillion, with a forecast through FY 10 of
$101.3 mllion, totaling $184.1 million for the revenue
sour ce.

Co- Chair Stedman asked whether $182.7 million was the gain
for the year. M. Burnett clarified that the $184.1 nillion
was the estimated unrestricted investnent earnings for FY
10, in primarily general funds. O that $184.1 mllion
forecast $82.8 mllion been earned so far.

M. Burnett continued with restricted investnents, noney
that stays in the CBR  subfunds of the general fund,
endownents and trusts, and the permanent fund. The forecast
for FY 10 was $1.7 billion, but it already earned $5

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 13 02/01/10 9:06 A M



billion in FY 09. He noted that the restricted earnings had
done well, but the wunrestricted earnings were slightly
bel ow t ar get.

Co-Chair Stedman remarked on the exceptional rebound since
April 2009. M. Burnett agreed, but stressed the volatility
in the market fromday to day.

10: 24: 45 AM

Co- Chai r St edrman request ed t hat staff review the
presentation and sonme of the nentioned issues.

Comm ssioner Galvin offered to answer questions from the
conmittee.

Co-Chair Stedman discussed a future presentation by the
Departnment of Transportation and Public Facilities (DOI/PF)
and the possibility of additional stinulus nonies.

Senator Ellis expressed frustrations about DOI/PF, and its
backl og of projects. He hoped to address the issues during
t he DOT/ PF presentation.

#
ADJ OQURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 10: 30 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 14 02/01/10 9:06 A M



